Public Document Pack

Democratic Services Section
Legal and Civic Services Department
Belfast City Council
City Hall
Belfast
BT1 5GS



HYBRID MEETING OF THE CITY GROWTH AND REGENERATION COMMITTEE

Dear Alderman/Councillor,

The above-named Committee will meet both online and in-person in the Lavery Room - City Hall on Wednesday, 8th November, 2023 at 5.15 pm, for the transaction of the business noted below.

You are requested to attend.

Yours faithfully,

John Walsh

Chief Executive

AGENDA:

1. Routine Matters

- (a) Apologies
- (b) Minutes
- (c) Declarations of Interest
- (d) Schedule of Meetings (Pages 1 4)

2. Restricted Items

(a) Vacant to Vibrant Scheme Update (Pages 5 - 18)

3. Regenerating Places & Improving Infrastructure

- (a) Future City Centre Programme: Revised Framework and Pragma Report (Report to follow)
- (b) All Party Round Table on Connectivity, Active and Sustainable Travel (Report to follow)

4. Positioning the City to Compete

- (a) Northern Ireland Enterprise Support Service Update (Report to follow)
- (b) Mid -Year Update on Make Yourself at Home Tourism Plan (Report to follow)

5. Strategic and Operational Issues

- (a) City Growth and Regeneration Committee Plan 2023/24 (6-Month Update) (Pages 19 34)
- (b) Minutes of the Meeting of the Belfast Stories Working Group (Pages 35 38)

Agenda Item 1d



CITY GROWTH AND REGENERATION COMMITTEE

Subject:	Schedule of Meetings 2024
Date:	9th November, 2023
Reporting Officer:	Eilish McGoldrick, Democratic Services Officer
Contact Officer:	Eilish McGoldrick, Democratic Services Officer
Restricted Reports	
Is this report restricted?	Yes No X
	ption, as listed in Schedule 6, of the exempt information by virtue of emed this report restricted.
Insert number	
Information relating	to any individual
2. Information likely to	reveal the identity of an individual
Information relating council holding that	to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the information)
Information in conne	ection with any labour relations matter
Information in relation	on to which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained
	that the council proposes to (a) to give a notice imposing restrictions on a ke an order or direction
7. Information on any a	action in relation to the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime
If Yes, when will the repor	t become unrestricted?
After Committe	ee Decision
After Council I	Decision
Sometime in the	ne future
Never	
Call-in	
Is the decision eligible for	Call-in? Yes X No

1.0	Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues	
	To advise the Committee of the dates and times of the meetings of the City Growth and	
	Regeneration Committee between January and December, 2024.	
2.0	Recommendations	
	The Committee is requested to approve the schedule of meetings for the Committee as	
	outlined.	
3.0	Main report	
	Key Issues	
3.1	The monthly meeting of the City Growth and Regeneration Committee is normally held at	
	5.15 p.m. on the 2nd Wednesday of each month.	
3.2	However, due to holiday periods and the timing of the monthly Council meetings and, in	
	order to assist with the decision-making process, it has been necessary on occasions to	
	move some of the meetings to earlier or later in the month.	
3.3	Please note that as previously agreed, special meetings of the Committee have also been	
	scheduled in respect of Presentations.	
3.4	Accordingly, the following dates have been identified for meetings of the City Growth and	
	Regeneration Committee for the period from January to December, 2024:	
	Wednesday 10th January at 5.15 pm;	
	Wednesday 31st January at 5.15 pm (Special);	
	Wednesday 7th February at 5.15 pm;	
	Wednesday 13th March at 5.15 pm;	
	Wednesday 27th March at 5.15 pm (Special);	
	Wednesday 10th April at 5.15 pm;	
	Wednesday 8th May at 5.15 pm;	
	Wednesday 29th May at 5.15 pm; (Special);	
	Wednesday 12th June at 5.15 pm;	
	Wednesday 7th August at 5.15 pm;	
	Wednesday 28th August at 5.15 pm (Special);	
	Wednesday 11th September at 5.15 pm;	
	Wednesday 9th October at 5.15 pm;	
	Wednesday 9th October at 5.15 pm;	

	Wednesday 23rd October at 5.15 pm (Special);	
	Wednesday 6th November at 5.15 pm;	
	Wednesday 27th November at 5.14pm (Special)	
	Wednesday 4th December at 5.15 pm.	
	Financial and Resource Implications	
3.5	None associated with this report.	
	Equality or Good Relations Implications/Rural Needs Assessment	
3.6	None associated with this report.	
0.0		
4.0	Appendices – None associated with this report.	



Agenda Item 2a

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.

Document is Restricted



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 5a



Is the decision eligible for Call-in?

CITY GROWTH & REGENERATION COMMITTEE

Subject:	City Growth & Regeneration Committee Plan 2023/24 (6-Month Update)	
Date:	8 November 2023	
Reporting Officer:	John Greer, Director of Economic Development Cathy Reynolds, Director of City Regeneration and Development	
Contact Officer: Jamie Uprichard, Business Research and Development Manager		
Restricted Reports		
Is this report restricted	? Yes No X	
	cription, as listed in Schedule 6, of the exempt information by virtue of leemed this report restricted.	
Insert number		
Information relating	ig to any individual	
	to reveal the identity of an individual	
Information relating council holding that	ng to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the at information)	
Information in con	nection with any labour relations matter	
Information in rela	ation to which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained	
6. Information showing that the council proposes to (a) to give a notice imposing restrictions on person; or (b) to make an order or direction		
7. Information on an	y action in relation to the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime	
If Yes, when will the rep	oort become unrestricted?	
After Comm	ittee Decision	
After Counc	il Decision	
Sometime in	the future	
Never		
Call-in		
	ior Call in 2	

1.0	Purpose of Report or Summary of Main Issues
1.1	This paper provides a six-month progress update on the key actions contained in the 2023-
1.1	24 City Growth and Regeneration (CG&R) Committee Plan, as agreed by this Committee in
	September 2023.
2.0	Recommendations
2.0	The Committee is asked to:
	note the content of the mid-year report and progress against the agreed actions within
0.0	the 2023-24 City Growth and Regeneration Committee Plan.
3.0	Main Report
3.1	The 2023-24 Committee Plan was developed in the context of the Council's Corporate Plan and the refreshed Belfast Agenda. The Committee will recall that the 2023-24 Plan contains the commitments within the Corporate Delivery Plan, which fall under the remit of the Committee, plus additional deliverables that have been agreed by CG&R Committee. It sets out the main priorities and programmes of work that the Committee is overseeing to maximise the Council's contribution to the Belfast Agenda and delivering the previous corporate priorities of inclusive economic recovery and community recovery. Members will be aware that work is ongoing to develop a new Corporate Plan (and Committee Plans) for the 2024-2038 period.
3.2	While the work of the CG&R Committee will contribute towards a number of the priorities identified within the refreshed Belfast Agenda, work has also continued to deliver on longer-term plans for the city. Therefore the 2023-24 Committee Plan includes key priorities that will help the people and businesses of Belfast continue to respond to, and recover from, the economic impact of the pandemic while also shaping the future regeneration, development and sustainability of the city.
3.3	While the Committee receives regular updates on progress with the delivery of specific programmes and initiatives this report provides a composite overview. Appendix 1 outlines progress with the main commitments in the Committee Plan for the six month period, April-September 2023. It should be noted that many of the commitments will continue to be delivered over the course of the year and the Committee will be kept informed of progress.
3.4	Financial and Resource Implications Progress is in line with the agreed Committee Plan, annual work plans and associated Departmental budgets.

3.5	Equality or Good Relations Implications / Rural Needs Assessment Strategies, programmes and actions within the Committee Plan are developed and delivered in consultation with the Council's Equality & Diversity Unit and are subject to appropriate equality screening and rural needs assessment.
4.0	Appendices – Documents Attached
	Appendix 1 - CGR Committee Plan 2023-24 – 6 month progress report





City Growth and Regeneration

Committee Plan 2023- 2024 6-monthly Progress Report



1. Inclusive Economic Recovery

Strategic Priority and In- Year Deliverable	Progress made between 1st April and 30th September
Cultural Strategy (SRO:	John Greer)
Progress the 'A City Imagining Plan':	The latest comprehensive update will be presented to November's CG&R Committee. Summaries from previous updates are shown below.
	August CGR Committee was updated on the funding scheme for artist led organisations to provide financial and development support. Committee agreed the proposals for the allocation of funding. £100,000 has been allocated to support Artist Studios & Makers Spaces in 23/24.
	June's CGR Committee was updated on the various grants used to support the Cultural Strategy 'A City Imagining'. These include Cultural multi-annual grants (CMAG) and an extension of the Pathfinder grants. CMAG grants cover two main areas: Arts & Heritage and Festivals & Events. Committee was advised that, for the new financial year in April 2024, it was planned to launch CMAG in August 2023 (it is currently open until 6 October 2023) with approval of awards and contracts by March 2023. A range of measures to promote the grants will be used. Committee was also updated on the evaluation of the grants process and the recommendations made to improve the process. June's committee were also advised about DfC's Access and Inclusion Programme 2023-24.
Implement "Music Matters" Music Strategy:	August's and September's CGR Committees were updated on progress with the Music Strategy and asked to approve the programme of work for the remainder of the year. Key areas of progress to date included agreeing the final strategy and agreeing an allocation of £900k for 2023/24 and 24/25.
	In September, Members were asked to approve funding for the NI Music Prize to honour and celebrates the very best of new, established and emerging NI music. It is a key music event for the city of Belfast and will host an audience of 1,000 people.
Progress Belfast 2024 Year of Cultural	June's CGR Committee was presented with an update on Belfast 2024 . Committee noted the summary of the strategic case and developments for delivery for Belfast 2024, in particular, the programming and proposed governance model.
Celebration for Belfast	Committee also approved the Belfast 2024 outline programme budget of £7.1million; the increase in allocation for the local Open Call aspect of programme development; the commissioning partnership with the Power Plants project for research and development; and the additional 3 Creative Bursaries giving 16 in total across Belfast 2024.
City Recovery, reopenin	ng the city and support for businesses (SRO: Cathy Reynolds)
Business Cluster & Community Grants	BCCG; Work continues with community and business groups to finalise the delivery of the BCCG's with all works expected to be complete by March 2024. The BCCG's have deliver c£15.m of capital support to 67 community groups and business clusters across the city to bring forward shop frontage improvements, environmental improvements, outdoor spaces, community gardens and upgrades to sports facilities.
Vacant to Vibrant	Vacant to Vibrant. Almost 300 application packs have been issued, and officers are currently working with a number of applicants, providing support to develop their proposals. A total of 14 applications have been approved, with one application pending approval and a further 9 applicants actively engaging with officers to finalise their applications with an expectation that these will be submitted Winter 2023/24, and a further 9 applicants are progressing with support via the Matchmaking Service. To date this has resulted in over 50 employment opportunities, estimated rates value

	c.£800k over the course of the lease periods and the reactivation to support 13 historic / heritage / buildings of interest.
	A match maker service has now been commissioned and to identify premises and to assist potential businesses to land their required space
City Development and	Investment (SRO: Cathy Reynolds)
Regeneration Framework	Work is advanced on the development of a Regeneration Framework and Project Prioritisation Process . A significant programme of engagement has been completed including Party Group Leaders, MPs, Permanent Secretaries and other stakeholders, as well as internally across the organisation. This is aligned to the ongoing work via City & Organisational Strategy to develop a project pipeline for Council aligned to funding opportunities and city priorities.
Secure Belfast additional investment	The Lobby paper seeking to secure Belfast's additional investment and funding to realise the city and Region's growth ambitions is in final draft format. This has been informed by extensive engagement including Party Group Leaders, MPs, Permanent Secretaries and other stakeholders, as well as internally across the organization.
City centre investment fund	A review of the City Centre Investment Fund (CCIF) is ongoing. This is aligned with the city's development aspirations.
Institutional investor / development partner	As reported to <u>CGR Committee</u> in September 2023, the Expression of Interest process, re an institutional investor / development partner , was launched in March 2023 and closed in May 2023. Subsequent to September's 2023 <u>SP&R</u> decision and ratified at Council In October 2023 the competitive dialogue process has been approved and was launched to market in October 23.
Strategic direction to major projects	Officers continued to actively engage on major private sector led regeneration schemes through the established Project Reference Groups to ensure alignment with Council's strategic corporate priorities.
Progress citywide strategic opportunities	As reported to PGL Forum in August 2023 and <u>CGR Committee</u> in September 2023 work continues to identify land (both public and private) with housing potential through the agreed mechanism under the Housing Led Regeneration Group , established under the Community Planning Partnership City Development Board, which currently includes representatives from BCC, NIHE, SIB, DfC & LPS.
2 Royal Avenue	As agreed by SP&R Committee in August 2023, an application for funding for the refurbishment of the first floor of 2 Royal Avenue to provide a dedicated space for organisations representing the LGBTQIA+ sector is being progressed under PEACEPLUS Investment Area 1.1. The Operator Feasibility Model in respect of the building is in final draft, and work is continuing on the delivery of DfC capital funding to enhance and open the rear of the building into Bank Square.
The Sixth	Work on the Sixth was also progressed via the BelTel LLP.
Regeneration Assets	Ongoing management of the Regeneration Assets in line with the objectives of the CCIF.
Belfast Campus	The Council are supporting the transition of CCRF in line with the opening of the Belfast Campus and transition to BAU. We continued to support the UU Community Campus Regeneration Forum , including its transition in line with the opening of the Belfast campus.

A Bolder Vision for Belfast

Council officers continue to take a civic lead on **A Bolder Vision** by ensuring that pending schemes take account of, and deliver on the objectives of, A Bolder Vision for Belfast. Further detailed updates are included under *Access, Connectivity, Active and Sustainable Travel* later in this document.

Increase tourism spend through sustainable tourism products (SRO: John Greer)

Deliver year 2 of the 10-year Tourism recovery plan "Make Yourself at Home"

The latest comprehensive update will be presented to <u>November's CG&R Committee</u>. Summaries from previous updates are shown below.

June's CGR Committee was presented with an update on the development of the Neighbourhood Tourism Investment Programme. This builds on the support that has been in place since 2017. The current support will remain in place until April 2024. Subsequently we will move to investment in a 2-year programme to develop and enhance tourism products and experiences across the city, sharing and distributing the benefits of a vibrant tourism sector throughout local neighbourhoods. This will be aligned with work on the cultural strategy and development of Belfast Stories.

<u>August's Committee</u> were provided with an update on 'One Young World' and the Council's role in supporting the event. It is expected to attract 2,000 + young delegates (including 20 from Belfast) plus some 40+ global leaders, 100+ international journalists and 100's of leading global companies.

Deliver the Annual Events programme

In addition to the update presented to <u>November's CG&R Committee.</u> Summaries from previous updates are shown below.

<u>August's</u>, <u>June's</u> and <u>October's Committees</u> were presented with updates on the **annual events programme**. In particular, they were updated on the bids to secure **Fleadh Cheoil** and the **European Football Championships** in 2028; and progress with St Patrick's Day and the Maritime Festival.

Members will be aware that significant work has taken place in recent years to realign City Events with Council's wider cultural and tourism ambitions. This has included a renewed focus on working in partnership and developing programmes that support the local cultural sector and represent an authentic Belfast Experience.

At <u>April 2023 Committee</u>, Members agreed the Year 2 Action Plan of Event Delivery against MYAH. The 6-month update against these targets and deliverables is as follows:

- 1 large scale city events (Maritime) was delivered attracted local audiences and out of state visitors, with two to follow (Christmas and St Patrick's Day).
- Maritime Festival successfully delivered in September 2023, including an audience
 of 80,000, securing TNI funding of £60,000. In lieu of a large-scale creative piece
 (Council decision), a Maritime village including craft, food and science fair was
 delivered. Initial estimates suggest a potential Economic impact of £1.33 million.
 However, a full Debrief report and Developmental Action plan will follow soon for
 Committee approval.
- Christmas 2023 after consideration of event health and safety considerations, and
 programming options as brought by Officers; Members have agreed to the
 traditional format and Officers have continued to research initiatives with local
 creatives to enhance the co-design of creative offering. Event planning and
 developmental work continues with all relevant stakeholders.
- St Patrick's Day 2024 Officers continue to progress delivery, via a tender of the new model and associated commissioning approach to the creative sector, to ensure delivery of elements such as: a parade, music programme and community engagement. Good Relations Unit have advised there will be no budget enhancement available for the 2024 event. A marketing campaign is currently being scoped.

- Lord Mayor's Day 2023 was delivered with engagement of the Lord Mayor's Networks. A Debrief report was previously brought back to Committee.
- Eurovision event delivered in May 2023 in 2RA through provider Maywe and Council engaged in a UK wide partnership approach, led by the BBC. Debrief report was previously presented to Committee.
- International Events As part of the international events programme for 2025-2028, Officers continue to participate in the ongoing bidding process for Fleadh Cheoil for 2025 and beyond (Members have been provided with regular update reports in-year on this). Euro 2028 has been secured as part of a 5 Nation Bid (regular reports have been provided and a further report will be provided before the end of the financial year when the governance and human and financial resourcing has been more clearly mapped). Members will also be aware of the ongoing bid for the Oireachtas na Samhna (report previously presented to Committee in October).
- A collaborative programming approach continues to be adopted to the Council managed portfolio of events intertwined with bidding and securing international events.
- One Young World this event was successfully delivered during October 2023, with 2,200 delegates and corporates in attendance from over 190 countries. A Debrief and Evaluation continues to be collated and a full debrief report will be brought to Committee in the second half of the financial year.
- Sports Events Grants continue to support local organisations with 9 organisations funded within year.
- Belfast 2024 the Events Unit continue to work with colleagues in Belfast 2024 to plan and support the operational and logistical delivery of the programme.

The Events Unit continue to scope the governance requirements across the city in relation to both the council managed events portfolio and international events bid programme in conjunction with stakeholders

Encourage business start-ups and support indigenous business growth (SRO: John Greer)

Provide 'Starting a Business' services:

<u>August's Committee</u> was updated on the new **Enterprise Support Service** – the regional initiative that will be led by Belfast City Council. The service will commence from October 2023 and will be formally launched in November 2023.

Support social enterprises and cooperatives:

A response to **DfE's one-year social enterprise action plan** was approved at the October meeting of the CG&R Committee. Officers are engaging with DfE on implementation – with a focus on ensuring alignment with councils and the NIESS work

Provide 'Growing a Business' services by:

Update as per input on Starting a Business (above)

Support City Markets (SRO: John Greer)

Enhance St George's Market:

Work is under way to support delivery of the **investment plan** – initial work is focusing on addressing excessive storage levels which are impacting on the ability to hold additional events.

Deliver Continental Market:

A **Twilight Market** is planned for Halloween 2023

Support external markets:

Planning work is under way for the **Christmas 2023 market** – activity is planned to complement the planned lights switch-on on 18 November 2023

Promote and market the city internationally (SRO: Cathy Reynolds)

Positioning the City to Compete:

Officers supported the delivery of the **Renewed Ambition Partnership** programme of activity.

This is focused on the five key pillars of Research; Events; Advocacy and Engagement; Communications and Repository (including attending MIPIM and UKREiiF 2023 to facilitate engagement with institutional investors and developers); and showcase investment and regeneration opportunities in Belfast and the wider city region. Follow-up activity, including facilitating city visits is on-going.

As approved by <u>CGR Committee</u> in August 2023 Council Officers have commenced supporting the 23 / 24 programme including governance processes, administering programme funded expenditure and entering into associated contracts on behalf of, and with oversight from, the Taskforce in line with Council's procurement processes. As included within the presentation from the Chair of the Taskforce to Committee in August 2023, the partnership has undergone a rebrand to the "Belfast City and Region Place Partnership". The launch of the 2023 / 24 Programme is scheduled to take place on 14 November 2023.

Through our **investor support activity**, we continued to provide advice and connections to potential investors, including the Northern Ireland Investment Summit in September 2023.

The **Building Impact Report** was shared with Committee following the Committee meeting in August 2023. Work is on-going to support the implementation of the report recommendations.

Monitoring and analysis of valid planning applications to inform the **City Development Tracker** continues on an ongoing basis.

Ongoing maintenance and updating of the **Invest in Belfast website** with information on Belfast, the key growth sectors and specific investment and development opportunities.

Continued roll out of the **investment CRM system**, ongoing maintenance and management.

Future City Centre Programme and Belfast City Centre Regeneration & Investment Strategy (SRO: Cathy Reynolds)

Continue to progress the Future City Centre Programme

In order to address the pertinent issues impacting on the city centre today, work has progressed to revise the "Future City Centre" (FCC) Programme. This has involved a comprehensive programme of research and engagement, including engagement with Members via the City Centre All Party Working Group, the updated Pragma report, cross departmental officer workshop and wider stakeholder views raised as part of community planning and articulated in the refreshed Belfast Agenda. Reporting to the CGR Committee on the refreshed FCC Programme and Monitoring Framework is scheduled for November 2023.

Ongoing progress within this quarter include:

- work has commenced on the Southwest Quarter scheme involving 4 business cluster & community grant schemes alongside an environmental improvement/connectivity scheme on Gt Victoria St & Shaftsbury Sq.
- The 5C's scheme supported by Developer Contributions continues through Dfl engagement prior to planning.
- The Developer Contribution funded Little York/Little Patrick Scheme is in planning.
- Procurement process has commenced to bring forward Blackstaff Sq as a catalyst project in conjunction with DfC.

Work has commenced on the final Entries project within this Phase, focusing on reopening Sugarhouse Entry.

Belfast City Centre Regeneration & Investment Strategy (BCCRIS)	A number of priorities and projects identified within Belfast City Centre Regeneration & Investment Strategy continue to be progressed via BCC and other private /public sector partners.
Regeneration Projects	The Joint Regeneration Group (BCC, DfC, DfI, NIHE) met on a monthly basis to coordinate the public sector approach to Housing-Led Regeneration, A Bolder Vision, public realm projects, refresh of the Belfast Agenda and the FCC programme. Updates were provided to Committee in <u>August</u> and <u>September</u> 2023 in relation to DfI funding for the "Grey to Green" and Active Travel Enablers.
	The council continued to lead the Community Planning Partnership's City Development Board with a focus on the refresh of the Belfast Agenda and associated emerging draft action plans aligned to the newly identified priorities of the City Development Board, ie, Housing Led Regeneration; Future City Centre Programme and Citywide Regeneration; Connectivity, Active & Sustainable Travel and supported the launch of the public consultation for this which was launched in August 2023 and is scheduled to close on 2 October 2023.
Developer Contributions	Committee received an update in respect of Developer Contributions (historical contributions) in <u>April 2023</u> . These continue to be monitored and scheme proposals utilising the contributions are being progressed.
City Infrastructure (SRC	: Cathy Reynolds)
Champion the Council's preferred position for major infrastructure projects.	 We continue to provide civic leadership and strategic input to the major city infrastructure projects and represent Council on citywide boards, enabling, facilitating, and influencing major infrastructure development and investment. Committee received presentations at the Special meeting of Committee in June 2023: from Belfast Harbour Commissioners and Titanic Quarter Limited in June 2023 on the development of the Queens Island Transport Plan from Dfl on the Belfast Metropolitan Transport Plan (Committee are being asked to consider Council's response to the Eastern Transport Plan at the October 2023 Committee meeting). From Dfl on the York Street Interchange Place Making & Active Travel review in February 2023 Committee agreed responses to the Dfl EQIA Consultation in August 2023 and the All-Island Strategic Rail Review (AISRR) in September 2023. Committee are scheduled to receive the Dfl Spring and Autumn 2023 Reports at a future meeting. Committee received a presentation from Dfl on the emerging Eastern Transport Plan, with a draft public consultation report to be presented to the October meeting of the CG&R Committee. Officers continue to input to Strategic projects through the Streets Ahead, Living with Water and Belfast Rapid Transport Programme Boards with reports brought to Committee when appropriate.
Committee Assets (SRO	: John Greer)

in April to review fees and charges;

Belfast Bike Scheme

- in <u>June</u> to further consider fees and charges; and to present performance levels in terms of finances, visitor numbers, educational activity and the animal collection; and to consider donations to the approved conservation projects;
- and August to outline future options for the Elephants.

<u>June's CGR Committee</u> was presented with an update on the **Belfast Bikes' Scheme**. This included information about the newly opened additional bike stations at Lisnasharragh Leisure Centre, Olympia Leisure Centre, Kennedy Centre, and Waterworks. It also outlined plans for further expansion.

In terms of performance, it was reported that sourcing replacement bike parts and purchasing new bikes has resulted in an increase in the average daily bikes on the street. There were 16,282 registered Belfast Bike users at the end of Q4 (2022-23). It was also noted that Income from fees and charges in Q4 was down compared to average.

<u>August's committee</u> was provided with a further updated. This included information on the notice of motion to provide **free transport for younger people** and outlined the cost implications. Members agreed to consider this proposal as part of the rate setting process for 24/25 and would also write to the Department for Infrastructure and the Department of Health to request investment in this proposal, to be delivered on an annual basis.

Belfast Stories (SRO: Wendy Langham)

<u>June's CGR Committee</u> was presented with an update on the Belfast Stories project. This presented key areas of progress including the feedback from public consultation and outlined plans for the next phase of the project.

Key progress includes:

- completion of the procurement process of the Integrated Design Team and Project Management Design Assurance Team (as within November 2021 SPR approval to progress with key professional services appointments).
- the RIBA design stage 1 can commence in Q4 now the teams are in place.
- completion of the Belfast Stories Audit.
- a stories collection pilot will commence in Q4.
- the statutory process regarding the abandonment of the adopted alleyway commenced and is well underway.

to support engagement, a Members' Working Group has been established and will meet in October. We are setting up a Stories Network to support wider stakeholder engagement with the first meeting in November.

Access, Connectivity, Active and Sustainable Travel (SRO: Cathy Reynolds)

Active Travel and Connectivity

A Connectivity, active and Sustainable Travel Members' All Party Roundtable discussion took place on 30 August 2023 which provided an overview of the various streams of work underway, challenges and opportunities and where they feed into Council's strategic priorities and governance structures.

A Bolder Vision for Belfast

BCC continues to work with Dfl and DfC on finalisation of the **Bolder Vision Strategy** with the emerging draft Strategy approved by <u>CG&R Committee</u> in August 2022.

Engagement is ongoing with departments (in the absence of Ministers) through the Oversight Group (CX, and Perm Secs from DfC and Dfl) and the Steering Group (Directors BCC, DfC, Dfl).

DfI have accelerated the Belfast city centre element of the ETP to address the **Climate Action Plan** through modelling options for the provision of the strategic transportation network and to help inform the emerging capital project list. Updates will be provided to CG&R as this work progresses.

	Council Officers continue to develop a pipeline of projects aligned to A Bolder Vision to identify, prioritise and work up catalyst connectivity projects to attract external funding.
	With reference to engagement with Dfl, updates were provided to Committee in August and September 2023 in relation to Dfl funding for the "Grey to Green" and Active Travel Enablers including the provision of covered and secure cycle stands across the city.
	The Active Travel Hub at QUB has been delivered and is now operating successfully. The Cathedral Quarter Active Travel Hub has been delivered and in is now into its second year of the pilot. Officers continue to develop a pipeline of projects for external funding opportunities aligned to ABV to deliver on the CAST action plan.
Horizon Europe Urban Planning 2030	Project commenced and Grant Agreement received from UKRI. Project financial and progress reporting underway with UKRI and Horizon Europe and regular attendance and reporting to the UP2030 consortium and liaison partner, <i>Mapping for Change</i> . Five workshops have taken place including Visioning, Active Travel, Greening, Retrofit and Strategic Partners. Meetings have taken place with representatives from the geographical areas covered within the pilot, Falls, Sandy Row, Markets, Donegall Pass and Linen Quarter; with focused engagement planned for the coming months.
Waterfront Proposition – Belfast Waterfront Promenade	Committee agreed in October 2022 to contribute funding to the development of a framework for a fully connected waterfront - building on existing and proposed plans and schemes and aligned to local and central government objectives including A Bolder Vision, private sector development and community group proposals. An update on the framework and work of the Waterfront Task Group is being reported to Committee in October 2023 with work ongoing to develop projects of significant scale for funding.
Belfast – Cork Harbour Cities	An update on the progress of the Cork Belfast Docklands Regeneration Shared Island Initiative was presented to SP&R Committee in August 2023 it was agreed the prioritised project for the Belfast Dockside Regeneration as the Sailortown to Titanic Quarter Active Travel Bridge. Members will note also the alignment of this to the work of the Waterfront Task Group.
Car Parking Strategy	As agreed by CG&R Committee in June 2022 the refresh of the Car Parking Strategy is deferred pending the finalisation of the LDP & BMTP. The Car Parking Working Group has been reconvened in light of the adopted LDP and consultation on the Eastern Transport Plan (former BMTP). Officers continue to work with Dfl to establish the implications of the emerging ETP work on the Car Parking Strategy
Educational underachievement (SRO: John Greer)	
GSCE Support Programme	October's <u>CG&R Committee</u> was provided with an update advising that 434 young people had been engaged through the GCSE support programme.
Access to employment (SRO: John Greer)	

Deliver Employment academies.

Improving demand side support:

September's CGR Committee was updated on the Belfast Business Promise, as a key commitment in the Council's Inclusive Growth Strategy. The Pilot Promise scheme will run from April to November 2023. In the first eight weeks following the go-live date of 24th April 2023, 35 organisations had been engaged and, of this, 21 organisations are now signed up to the Belfast Business Promise and going through the process of accreditation.

The October CG&R Committee will be provided with a full update on performance across Employment Academies, with almost 580 people to be supported in the course of the year.

Upskilling opportunities (SRO: John Greer)

Progress the Belfast Labour Market Partnership (LMP)

The Gateway to Choices service has been operational since Summer 2023. 400 people have received support from the service to date.

The Belfast Jobs Fair took place in St George's Market on 10 October. Almost 70 employers were in attendance offering more than 1800 jobs.

2. Community Recovery

Strategic Priority and In-Year Deliverable	Progress made between 1st April and 30th September
Maximising housing de	velopment and regeneration opportunities (SRO: Cathy Reynolds)
BCC Housing-Led Regeneration Programme	Updates on specific Housing-Led Regeneration Programmes are set out in the following sections. There is ongoing work with city partners in relation to working to overcome obstacles to increasing residential development , including City Centre living. This work has involved while continuing to facilitate workshops with various stakeholders. These include a recent workshop with cross public sector representation from the CPP Housing Led Regeneration Group and representatives from the local development community.
Citywide strategic opportunities	As reported to PGL Forum in August 2023 and CGR Committee in September 2023 work continues to identify land (both public and private) with housing potential. This involves the agreed mechanism under the Housing Led Regeneration Group, which was established under the Community Planning Partnership City Development Board. Representatives currently include BCC, NIHE, SIB, DfC & LPS.
	Further analysis on the planning and development feasibility of these sites is required to evaluate the potential to deliver housing led regeneration either in isolation or as part of wider land assembly with the public/private sector. Work also continues to extend this identification process to include Education, Health and other public sector landholdings as their data is received. A further report will be brought back to this Committee as this work progresses.
Strategic City Centre Cluster Sites	As per report to <u>CGR Committee</u> in September 2023 and subsequent decision of the SP&R Committee in September (subject to Council ratification on 4 October) Officers are now progressing the re-issue of a reframed Development Brief to the Housing Associations . This is in-line with the revised wording on the residential mix and the inclusion of a terminal deferred payment approach to the land value.
	As reported to <u>CGR Committee</u> in September 2023, the Expression of Interest process, re an institutional investor / development partner , was launched in March 2023 and closed in May 2023. Subsequent to September's 2023 <u>SP&R</u> decision (subject to Council ratification on 4 October 2023), the competitive dialogue process has been approved and work is underway to support the commencement of this.
	This is supported by detailed work being completed on several initial cluster sites (from the Strategic Site Assessment work) including Concept Regeneration Plans for each of the cluster sites; ongoing engagement with other public and private sector neighbouring landowners; the adoption of a placemaking approach to development and progress through the planning process through Pre-Application Discussions (PADs), as well as site and title due diligence.
City Centre Living Vision	The City Centre Living Vision is being utilised as a reference document to inform Council's strategic direction for city centre living initiatives.



Belfast Stories Working Group

Thursday, 26th October, 2023

MEETING OF THE BELFAST STORIES WORKING GROUP

HELD IN THE CONOR ROOM AND REMOTELY VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS

Members present: Alderman Copeland; and

Councillors Bunting, Maghie and Smyth.

Also attended: Councillor Duffy (in place of Councillor Beattie).

In attendance: Ms. W. Langham, Programme Director;

Ms. E. Henry, Strategic Lead;

Ms. M. Bagnall, Programme Manager;

Ms. N. McElroy, Programme Support Assistant; and

Mr. H. Downey, Democratic Services Officer.

Election of Chairperson

The Working Group agreed that Councillor Smyth be elected to serve as Chairperson for the period to end on the date of the annual meeting of the Council in June 2024.

(Councillor Smyth in the Chair.)

Apologies

An apology was reported on behalf of Councillor Beattie.

Declarations of Interest

No declarations of interest were reported.

Role of the Working Group/Terms of Reference

The Programme Director reminded the Members that the City Growth and Regeneration Committee, at its meeting on 14th June, had granted approval to establish a Belfast Stories Working Group, to provide advice and oversight on the progression of the Belfast Stories Programme, with the Terms of Reference set out as follows:

1. Purpose

The Belfast Stories Working Group will be responsible for providing cross-party strategic advice to ensure that the programme vision, outcomes and objectives are realised.

The issues to be considered by the Working Group will include:

- Inclusive growth, including social value opportunities during design, construction and operations;
- Equality, inclusion, diversity, and accessibility;
- Ethics and approach to stories gathering, holding and interpretation;
- Sustainable development, including net zero build aspirations;
- Stakeholder engagement, consultation, communications and public relations;
- Linkages to the development and implementation of the Council's and the City's key plans, strategies and programmes;
- Consideration of good practice and benchmarks from other relevant projects and/or cities;
- Emerging actions which the Council may take to mitigate against any adverse impacts arising from the project and capitalising on any opportunities that may arise; and
- Monitoring of the Belfast Stories programme and progress against key milestones.

2. Membership

The Chair shall be appointed at the first meeting of the Working Group

3. Frequency of Meetings

The Group will normally meet on a quarterly basis and the minutes will be submitted to the City Growth and Regeneration Committee.

The Working Group endorsed the Terms of Reference.

Presentation - Belfast Stories Programme

The Programme Director reminded the Working Group that Belfast Stories, formerly known as the Belfast Destination Hub, was the Council's flagship project under the Belfast Region City Deal.

She reviewed the governance arrangements which had been put in place to ensure the efficient and effective delivery of each key stage of the project and made reference to the various oversight groups, boards and strategic partners involved. In delivering the project, three important objectives would be fulfilled, namely, to grow Belfast's economy through tourism-led regeneration and support for screen-based creative industries, to create and sustain a diversified vibrant city where people want to

live, work, visit and invest and to engender a greater sense of connection and belonging, thereby realising the vision of making Belfast a caring, vibrant and more visited city, transformed by the power of the stories of past, present and future generations.

In terms of the progress which had been made to date, the Programme Director reported that:

- an interim Outline Business Case had been completed in 2020;
- the first public consultation on the Belfast Stories project had been delivered between August and November 2022;
- the North Street/Royal Avenue site had now been acquired in full by the Council;
- a Benefits Realisation Framework had been developed to define and refine the range of benefits and outcomes linked to the project;
- the Integrated Design Team and Project Management and Design Assurance Team had now been appointed and would be publicised at a launch on 7th November; and
- the procurement process for the appointment of an Exhibition Design Team was nearing conclusion.

The Strategic Lead informed the Working Group that the Belfast Stories project was based around three pillars, namely, Stories, Screen and Social Spaces and pointed out that the site was perfectly positioned, in that it was adjacent to, for example, the Cathedral Quarter, with all its cultural activities, the new Ulster University campus and the retail core. It was also, importantly, situated close to some of the oldest inner-city communities, all of which were rich in heritage and had plenty to offer in terms of input to the content of the project.

She went on to outline the inclusive growth and social, economic and environmental sustainability benefits to be derived from the Belfast Stories project and provided information on the detailed engagement programme which would be undertaken over the coming twelve to eighteen months, alongside the design programme. A pilot stories programme was also being developed, details of which would be provided at a future meeting.

In terms of city-wide opportunities, she referred to the need for the Council, as a whole, to develop the tourism and place positioning, regeneration and infrastructure and culture and good relations offer, as part of the Belfast Stories project.

The Programme Director then drew the Working Group's attention to the following key milestones for 2023/24:

- Design Teams appointed November 23;
- Development of the concept design Dec 23 to June 24;

- Commencement of the stories gathering pilot Jan to Mar 24;
- Establishment of Stories Network and Stories Panel Oct 23 to Mar 24;
- Development of the Outline Business Case Dec 23 to Nov 24;
- Consultation on concept designs Aug to Oct 24; and
- Submission of Outline Business Case for Belfast Region City Deal approval – December 24.

She concluded by stating that the main risks around the delivery the Belfast Stories project related to concept, the external environment, Belfast Region City Deal funding/Department for the Economy approval, capital works, sustainability and city integration and providing details in relation to those.

After discussion, the Working Group:

- noted the information which had been provided;
- ii. noted that it would, at its next meeting, be presented with the Belfast Stories Benefits Realisation Plan, which would address some of the issues which had been raised by Members over the course of the meeting around the potential opportunities for local communities and residents; and
- iii. noted that arrangements would be put in place to enable Members to visit the Belfast Stories site and agreed that an invitation be extended to the City Growth and Regeneration Committee and the Shared City Partnership.

Date of Next Meeting

The Working Group noted that a date for its next meeting would be identified and circulated in due course.

Chairperson